
NOTICE OF COMMITTEE MEETING - AMENDED 

COMMITTEE: BOARD OF HEALTH 

PLACE: ONEIDA COUNTY HEALTH DEPT – SECOND FLOOR 

 100 W KEENAN ST; RHINELANDER, WI 

 CALL-IN OPTION – 1-312-626-6799 
Meeting ID: 832 3474 1189 Password: 361987 

 
** If you are having difficulties with zoom please call the Oneida County Health Department at 715-369-6111. Zoom is being offered as a 
convenience for this meeting. If zoom functionality drops, the meeting will continue in-person at the location listed above. 

 
DATE: TUESDAY, June 10, 2025 TIME: 9:00 AM 

 
It is possible that a quorum of county board members will be at this meeting to gather information about a subject over which they have decision-making 
responsibility. This constitutes a meeting of the County Board pursuant to State ex rel Badke v. Greendale Village Board, Wis 2d 553, 494 n.w.2d 408 
(1993), and must be noticed as such, although the County Board will not take any formal actions at this meeting. It is also possible that there may be 
quorums of other County Board Committees present, although those committees will not take any formal action at this meeting. 

ALL AGENDA ITEMS ASSUMED TO BE DISCUSSION/DECISION ITEMS 
AGENDA: 

  

  

   

  

 

1. Call to order and Chairperson’s announcements. 

2. Approve agenda for today’s meeting (order of agenda items at Chairperson’s discretion).

3. Approve minutes from May 13, 2025, Board of Health Committee Meeting 

4. Public comment/communication 

5. Introduction of Summer Interns  

• Nicole Wanty 

• Breana Johnson 

• Jasmyne Longo 

• Kari Herman 

    

 

6. Staff Report - Bonnie Fralick & Liz Ruhland:  Reproductive Health

7. Monthly / Quarterly Reports  

  

 

• Health Hazards 
• Measles Update  

8. WIC Merger 

9. Reappointment of Board of Health Community Member:  Casey Crump 

10. Strategic Plan 

11. 2025 & 2026 Budget Update 

12. PFAS Update 

13. Vouchers, purchase orders, line item transfers and other fiscal matters 

14. Date and agenda items for next meeting 

15. Public comment/communication 

16. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE OF POSTING  
TIME: 12:15 PM  DATE: 6/6/2025   PLACE: Courthouse Bulletin Board  

Debbie Condado, Chair  
Notice posted by Joneil Tess, Committee Secretary. Additional information on a specific agenda item may be obtained by contacting the person who 
posted this notice at 715-369-6106.  
 
NEWS MEDIA NOTIFIED BY EMAIL   DATE: 6/6/2025   TIME: 12:15 PM  

Northwoods River News  Lakeland Times Star Journal  
Tomahawk Leader WHDG Radio Station News WJFW Channel 12  

WXPR Radio Station WPEG.net Television Network Sunlight Report 

 
Notice is hereby further given that pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act reasonable accommodations will be provided for qualified individuals with disabilities upon 

request. Please call Tracy Hartman at (715) 369-6125 with specific information on your request allowing adequate time to respond to your request. 

  
See reverse side of this notice for compliance checklist with the Wisconsin Open Meeting Law. 

 



 

 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:  
 
1. Must be held in a location which is reasonably 
accessible to the public.  
 
2. Must be open to all members of the public 
unless the law specifically provides otherwise.  
 
  
NOTICE REQUIREMENTS:  
 
1. In addition to any requirements set forth below, 
notice must also be in compliance with any other 
specific statute.  
 
2. Chief presiding officer or his/her designee must 
give notice to the official newspaper and to any 
members of the news media likely to give notice 
to the public.  
 
  
MANNER OF NOTICE:  
Date, time, place and subject matter, including 
subject matter to be considered in a closed 
session, must be provided in a manner and form 
reasonably likely to apprise members of the public 
and news media.  
  
TIME FOR NOTICE:  
 
1. Normally, a minimum of 24 hours prior to the 
commencement of the meeting.  
 
2. No less than 2 hours prior to the meeting if the 
presiding officer establishes there is good cause 
that such notice is impossible or impractical.  
 
3. Separate notice for each meeting of the 
governmental body must be given.  
 
  
EXEMPTIONS FOR COMMITTEES & 
SUBUNITS  
Legally constituted sub-units of a parent 
governmental body may conduct a meeting during 
the recess or immediately after the lawful setting 
to act or deliberate upon the subject which was 
the subject of the meeting, provided the presiding 
officer publicly announces the time, place and 
subject matter of the sub-unit meeting in advance 
of the meeting of the parent governmental body.  
  
PROCEDURE FOR GOING INTO CLOSED 
SESSION:  
 
1. Motion must be made, seconded and carried 
by roll call majority vote and recorded in the 
minutes.  
 
2. If motion is carried, chief presiding officer must 
advise those attending the meeting of the nature 
of the business to be conducted in the closed 
session, and the specific statutory exemption 
under which the closed session is authorized.  
 
  
  
  
  
  
  

SYNOPSIS OF STATUTORY EXEMPTIONS 
UNDER WHICH CLOSED SESSIONS ARE 
PERMITTED:  
 
1. Concerning a case which was the subject of a 
Judicial or quasi-judicial trial before this 
governmental body.  Sec. 19.85(1)(a)  
 
2. Considering dismissal, demotion or discipline of 
any public employee or the investigation of 
charges against such person and the taking of 
formal action on any such matter; provided that 
the person is given actual notice of any 
evidentiary hearing which may be held prior to 
final action being taken and of any meeting at 
which final action is taken.  The person under 
consideration must be advised of his/her right that 
the evidentiary hearing be held in open session 
and the notice of the meeting must state the 
same.  Sec. 19.85(1)(b)  
 
3. Considering employment, promotion, 
compensation or performance evaluation data of 
any public employee over which this body has 
jurisdiction or responsibility.  Sec. 19.85(1)(c)  
 
4. Considering strategy for crime detection or 
prevention.  Sec. 19.85(1)(d)  
 
5. Deliberating or negotiating the purchase of 
public properties, the investing of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 
require a closed session.  Sec. 19.85(1)(e)  
 
6. Considering financial, medical, social or 
personal histories or disciplinary data of specific 
person, preliminary consideration of specific 
personnel problems or the investigation of specific 
charges, which, if discussed in public, would likely 
have a substantial adverse effect on the 
reputation of the person referred to in such data.  
Sec. 19.85(1)(f), except where paragraph 2 
applies.  
 
7. Conferring with legal counsel concerning 
strategy to be adopted by the governmental body 
with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to 
become involved.  Sec. 19.85(1)(g)  
 
8. Considering a request for advice from any 
applicable ethics board.  Sec. 19.85(1)(h)  
 
  
PLEASE REFER TO CURRENT STATUTE 
SECTION 19.85 FOR FULL TEXT  

CLOSED SESSION RESTRICTIONS:  
 
1. Must convene in open session before going 
into closed session.  
 
2. May not convene in open session, then 
convene in closed session and thereafter 
reconvene in open session within twelve hours 
unless proper notice of this sequence was given 
at the same time and in the same manner as the 
original open meeting.  
 
3. Final approval or ratification of a collective 
bargaining agreement may not be given in closed 
session.  
 
4. No business may be taken up at any closed 
session except that which relates to matters 
contained in the chief presiding officer’s 
announcement of the closed session.  
 
5. In order for a meeting to be closed under 
Section 19.85(1)(f) at least one committee 
member would have to have actual knowledge of 
information which he or she reasonably believes 
would be likely to have a substantial adverse 
effect upon the reputation involved and there 
must be a probability that such information would 
be divulged.  Thereafter, only that portion of the 
meeting where such information would be 
discussed can be closed.  The balance of that 
agenda item must be held in open session.    
 
  
BALLOTS, VOTES AND RECORDS:  
 
1. Secret ballot is not permitted except for the 
election of officers of the body or unless otherwise 
permitted by specific statutes.  
 
2. Except as permitted above, any member may 
require that the vote of each member be 
ascertained and recorded.  
 
3. Motions and roll call votes must be preserved 
in the record and be available for public 
inspection.  
 
  
USE OF RECORDING EQUIPMENT:  
The meeting may be recorded, filmed, or 
photographed, provided that it does not interfere 
with the conduct of the meeting or the rights of the 
participants.  
  
LEGAL INTERPRETATION:  
 
1. The Wisconsin Attorney General will give 
advice concerning the applicability or clarification 
of the Open Meeting Law upon request.    
 
2. The municipal attorney will give advice 
concerning the applicability or clarification of the 
Open Meeting Law upon request.  
 
  
PENALTY:  
Upon conviction, any member of a governmental 
body who knowingly attends a meeting held in 
violation of Subchapter IV, Chapter 19, Wisconsin 
Statutes, or who otherwise violates the said law 
shall be subject to forfeiture of not less than 
$25.00 nor more than $300.00 for each violation.  
  
Prepared by Oneida County Corporation 
Counsel Office - 5/16/96  

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




 

 

     BOARD OF HEALTH COMMITTEE   

MEETING MINUTES  

May 13, 2025 
   

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chair Debbie Condado, Vice Chair Dan Hess, Billy 

Fried, Lenore Lopez, Khrystyne Lindgren, William Crump  
  

COMMITTEE MEMBERS UNEXCUSED:  Marcy Davies  
  

STAFF PRESENT:  Linda Conlon, Rebecca Wold, Robbie Deede, Maddie Homstad, Kyla 

Waksmonski, Shelby Moore, Moriah Gross and Joneil Tess 
  

OTHERS PRESENT:   
  
 

Call to order:  Chair Condado called the meeting to order at 9:00am on the second floor 

of the Health & ADRC Building, 100 W. Keenan Street, Rhinelander, WI.  The meeting was 

posted in accordance with the Wisconsin Open Meeting Law and the facility is handicap 

accessible.  

  

Approval of agenda:  Motion by Hess/Lopez to approve today’s agenda with the order of 

items at the Chair’s discretion to move around.  All ayes; motion carried.  

 

Minutes of April 8, 2025:  Motion by Crump/Hess to approve the April 8, 2025, Board of 

Health Committee minutes.  All ayes; motion carried. 

  

Public Comment/Communications:  None 

 

Introduction of New Staff – Maddie Homstad:  Conlon shared that we have a new 

Environmental Health (EH) specialist who is starting her third week. Homstad has 

experience with water testing and lab work. She is filling a position that was open recently.. 

Homstad said she is originally from Minnesota and went to the University of Minnesota–

Duluth. She moved here last summer and is excited to learn more about the area and get 

started in her new role. 

 

Employee Service Award - Kyla Waksmonski – 15 Years:  Conlon presented 

Waksmonski with her 15-year employee service award. Kyla has been a valued member of 

the team and works closely with leadership on projects including accreditation, workforce 

development, quality improvement, performance management and strategic planning. 

Waksmonski thanked the team for the chance to learn and grow. 

 

Staff Reports:   

 

 Shelby Moore - Tobacco:  Moore shared that she started as an intern in 2020 and 

has been the Tobacco Coordinator since 2022. The Northwoods Tobacco-Free 

Coalition (NWTFC) serves seven counties, and her report focused on Oneida 

County. 

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




  
Board of Health Committee  
May 13, 2025 

Page 2 of 5  
   

 

 

Last spring, she worked with the FACT program on a cigarette cleanup and helped 

launch ballot bins—interactive containers where people vote on fun questions by 

placing cigarette butts inside. The first bins were placed at Bucketheads and Da Bar, 

with a third coming this summer. They may move the bins or redesign them to 

improve use. She noted that the ballot bins can be updated and moved as needed. 

 

Moore also helped with a Youth Day event in Vilas County that promoted healthy 

habits. Activities included yoga sessions, karate lessons, drumming by a local tribe, 

and a spinning wheel for fun, healthy challenges.  

 

Shelby Moore – FACT:  Moore handed out some posters that the FACT group has 

been working on. The focus is on getting youth involved and helping them build 

important skills. They’ve spent time brainstorming how to create strong messages for 

other youth. One of their main messages is that 80% of teens are not vaping, which 

helps keep the focus on the positive. 

 

The posters are meant to go in bathrooms and highlight the good choices teens are 

making. The goal is to encourage healthy behavior and show that most teens are 

making smart decisions. By taking part, the students build confidence, learn new 

skills, and become advocates for health in their schools. 

 

Conlon said the group is very active and committed. Chiamulera has been working 

closely with the students and has built a strong connection with them. The students 

are leading the way—they know what their peers are seeing and doing, and they’re 

helping design the messages. 

 

Moriah Gross – WI Wins:  Gross introduced herself and shared that she is a 

community health specialist who works with the Wisconsin Wins program.  She 

helps ensure tobacco/nicotine products aren't sold to youth by educating retailers 

and completing compliance checks (AKA inspections). 

 

Over the past year, there were very few illegal sales.  The stores that did sell either 

didn’t check IDs or checked the IDs and sold anyway. She explained that federal law 

says you must be 21 to buy these products, but state law still says 18. This 

discrepancy has caused confusion for retailers. Their team uses 16 and 17 year-old 

volunteers to help with checks. They can earn community service hours and letters 

of recommendation for their participation. 

 

Monthly / Quarterly Reports:   

 

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




  
Board of Health Committee  
May 13, 2025 

Page 3 of 5  
   

 

Communicable Disease:  Wold reviewed the 2025 Quarter 1 report.   

Measles Update:  Wold shared that they recently got a call from a local provider who 

was testing a child for measles. A team quickly came together to plan in case the 

test results came back positive for measles. The team reviewed steps in the 

investigation process, convened a meeting with a subject matter expert from state, 

and divided a prioritized list of next steps in the investigation process.  Measles is 

very contagious—an individuals may contract measles even being in the same areas 

as someone up to two hours after they have left.  

 

Before results came back, they started a list of possible contacts, community areas 

at risk, and began to develop public communication.. Timing is important with 

measles vaccines after a measles exposure, so early prep was key. Thankfully, the 

test came back negative.  

 

This situation helped the team practice their response. Wold said they don’t stock 

immune globulin and have limited MMR vaccines, but the nurses and community 

health specialists (CHS) were ready.  

 

Deede helped with next steps including providing more education and resources to 

schools. A press release was prepped to inform the public if the case came back 

positive. Crump said the team did a great job and noted that measles is coming 

back, so it’s important to stay prepared. Conlon added that it was impressive to see 

the team work without needing direction. 

 

There was a discussion about who might need a booster. People born between 1957 

and 1964 may not know what vaccine they got. Deede reviewed CDC guidelines to 

help answer questions about who should get a booster. 

 

Power Outage Update:  Conlon said there is a letter in the packet from Buildings & 

Grounds explaining what they’re doing to help prevent future problems. Conlon expressed 

gratitude to Buildings and Grounds for their follow up and their plan. A broken transfer 

switch had to be replaced. Conlon also asked for a full power shut-off once a month to 

make sure everything works properly. 

 

Buildings & Grounds is responsible to check if the generator turns on. If there’s a problem, 

they would call dispatch so the public health on-call staff can be notified in case anything 

needs to be moved. 

 

Conlon said if the generator turns on, there’s no need to worry. But if it doesn’t turn on, 

they want to be prepared. The Health Department is looking into getting battery packs for 

the refrigerators to give extra time for response. Conlon stated they are investigating 

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




  
Board of Health Committee  
May 13, 2025 

Page 4 of 5  
   

 

alternate solutions to the Sensaphone, which monitors temperatures. A better internet 

connection and or backup internet connection would also help in certain situations with 

monitoring refrigerator temperatures. 

 

Conlon said she feels confident about the generator now. 

 

2025 Budget Update:  Conlon said they lost funding for three peer recovery coaches but 

were able to transfer funds from another grant for now and are looking into other grant 

opportunities. They also lost around $60,000 for the reproductive health clinic. Conlon 

mentioned in the future with continued loss of funding some of the services being offered 

to the public may need to be reduced. 

 

The 2026 Federal budget may lead to cuts to many local grants, including those for lead 

prevention, Drug-Free Communities (DFC), prevention, immunization, reproductive health, 

and the Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant, and Substance Use Program (COSSUP). It 

looks like the budget still has some funding from Maternal Child Health (MCH). They can 

handle cuts so far this year, but staff would have to be reduced in a worst-case scenario. 

Conlon is keeping a close eye on the budget and is involved in discussions with State staff.  

There is a lot of uncertainty at the moment. 

 

Conlon said they are good at getting grants and usually are awarded about 75% of the 

ones they apply for. Wold added that funding is tight nationwide, so they keep applying for 

new grants as they become available, but expect that there will be much less opportunity 

to apply in the future. 

 

Reaccreditation Update:  Conlon stated things are going well, and we’ve reviewed many 

of the domains required to become Reaccredited and are working on Documentation. In 

the review there were a few items identified where we can make changes and 

improvements, but that is the purpose of Accreditation and Reaccreditation.  At this point, 

things are looking really good.  Waksmonski and Conlon talked about what health 

departments do after reaccreditation to keep things moving forward. Continuous 

improvement and effective and efficient services to the community are a few of the 

outcomes of Accreditation. 

 

PFAS:   Conlon asked Crump to give an update. Crump said the state confirmed they will 

meet with the Stella community again. They EPA has completed on soil testing and would 

like someone to discuss the results.  In addition, Crump went to a public meeting with 

Senator Felzkowski and Representative Swearingen to discuss PFAS. 

 

Crump indicated he thought State funding is delayed because of disagreements over 

wording. The governor added items in the budget to support PFAS work. Some wells have 

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




  
Board of Health Committee  
May 13, 2025 

Page 5 of 5  
   

 

Joneil Tess 

been re-drilled with DNR funds, but many people still rely on bottled water, which isn’t a 

long-term fix. 

 

The Town of Stella formed a subcommittee to work on this issue and are planning another 

PFAS community meeting for June. Conlon will reach out to Nathan to find out if DHS will 

be participate in a town meeting again like last year. Lopez mentioned a PFAS story on 

WXPR and research from Michigan State. Crump indicated he was reaching out to the 

researcher to get an update on the UW study. 

 

Vouchers, purchase orders, line item transfers and other fiscal matters:   

Conlon reviewed the 2025 budget, along with the invoices paid report. A discussion 

followed. Conlon shared concerns about future revenue from flu and COVID vaccines, 

especially if insurance doesn't cover the costs. Hess noted the presentation of the 

vouchers, purchase orders, line item transfers.  

 

Date and Agenda items for next meeting:  Tuesday, June 10, 2025 at 9am;  

 

Public comment/communications:   None 

 

  

_______________________________ ________________________________  

Committee Chair or Designee  Committee Secretary 

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




On  scale of 1= Strongly disagree and 5= Strongly agree.

Houses and apartments
in my community are
affordable and livable.

Survey respondents rated the following statements: 

2.35
Not enough money for

housing, household
expenses, and food

2.49
On  scale of 1= Not concerned at all and 5= Extremely concerned

Survey participants current living situation: 

percent of survey respondents that are worried about
losing housing, that answered "have housing" above

Survey responses to whether
current housing meets their

needs: 

3.2%96.8%

85.1% 11.7%

Top reasons why
housing needs are not

met:
Too small

Too expensive
Safety Concerns
Repairs needed

Current situation/ Temporary
Amenities at home doesn't suit

resident needs

Are concerned with not
having stable housing in

the next 3 months:

Them or their family
receive housing assistance:

13.5%

8.5%

Does NOT meet
needs

Meets Needs

In-House
87%

Referrals
13%

 STI Screening
In house 20-minute rapid
HIV test in-house
Hepatitis C and Syphilis
testing

The Oneida County Reproductive Health program is supported by grant funding and program generated
revenue. The program provides family planning and preventive health services to individuals of
reproductive age and offers a range of services, including birth control counseling, STI screening,
pregnancy testing, annual wellness exams, and more.

Colposcopy Services
What is a colposcopy?

A colposcopy is an in-office procedure
that uses a colposcope (binocular
microscope) to examine the cervix for
cancer-causing cells or tissues.

Why is offering in-house colposcopy
services important? 

Increase continuation of care
Increase revenue 
Improve client care
Decrease billing errors for clients
Allows people to get care quickly and
easily

Highlighted clinic services

What is the Reproductive Health Program?

Why is the program important?

1 out of 4 DHS HIV
Counseling, Testing, and
Referral (CTR) sites in the

Northern region!

I N C R E A S I N G  H E A L T H  C A R E  A C C E S S
I N  T H E  N O R T H W O O D S !

Increases
access to care

Provides
affordable &

confidential care  

Promotes client
autonomy

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




Client feels
respected

Client is
valued

Client feels
heard

Client was
well

educated

Person Centered Contraceptive Care (PCCC) Project

What was the PCCC project?
A fully funded health survey project
focusing on four clinical qualities,
coordinated by the Reproductive Health
National Training Center (RHNTC) and
the University of San Francisco (CA)

Providing care to male clients
In 2024, we doubled our male client visits and
provided a wide range of services to them,
including:

STI testing & treatment
Temporary Family Planning Only Service
(FPOS) Medicaid enrollment
Reproductive health supplies, including
condoms
Vasectomy referrals 

Looking forward to 2025

Increase of client visits

14 male client
visits in 2023

32 male client
visits in 2024

Increase
community

partner
engagement

Continue to
increase number

of clients

Provide access to
care for clients

Implement our
new clinic services

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




2025 QUARTER 1
HEALTH HAZARD REPORT

3

Complaints for 
housing for Quarter 1

46.25

Staff Hours 
Dedicated to Health 
Hazard Follow-up in 

Quarter 1

21

Active Cases in 
Quarter 1

7

Posted Cases 
Properties Total in 

Quarter 1

Human Health Hazard:

“a substance, activity or 
condition that is known 
to have the potential to 
cause acute or chronic 
illness, to endanger life, 
to generate or spread 
infectious diseases, or 
otherwise cause injury 
to affect the health of 

the public.”

(254.01)

OCHD had six (6) new reports of 
health hazards in Quarter 1. Case 

complexity remains high. Three (3) of 
the cases were related to housing, 
with all having additional concerns 

of garbage and/or hoarding. Many of 
these cases are collaborative agency 

effort, investigated and abated 
jointly with Planning and Zoning 

and/or Human Services.

2

6

1

3

4

7

1

5

6

9

7

0

2

6

5

66

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

New Health Hazards per Quarter

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

jtess
Text Box
Agenda




 P: (715) 369-6111 

F: (715) 369-6112 

ochd@oneidacountywi.gov 

OneidaCountyPublicHealth.org To protect, nurture & advance the health of our community 

 

100 W. Keenan Street | Rhinelander, WI 54501 • Monday-Friday 8:00AM-4:30PM 

Embracing change, partnerships, and best practices 

to lead Oneida County to a healthy and equitable future. 

Board of Health Notes: 

jtess
Text Box
Agenda





